
 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
Meeting 
 

Universal Services Select Committee 
 

Date and Time Monday 11th March, 2024 at 10.00 am 
  
Place Ashburton Hall - HCC 
  
Enquiries to members.services@hants.gov.uk 
  
Carolyn Williamson FCPFA 
Chief Executive 
The Castle, Winchester SO23 8UJ 
 
FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION 
This meeting may be recorded and broadcast live on the County Council’s website and 
available for repeat viewing, it may also be recorded and filmed by the press and 
public. Filming or recording is only permitted in the meeting room whilst the meeting is 
taking place so must stop when the meeting is either adjourned or closed.  Filming is 
not permitted elsewhere in the building at any time. Please see the Filming Protocol 
available on the County Council’s website. 

 
AGENDA 

  
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 All Members who believe they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in 

any matter to be considered at the meeting must declare that interest 
and, having regard to Part 3 Paragraph 1.5 of the County Council's 
Members’ Code of Conduct, leave the meeting while the matter is 
discussed, save for exercising any right to speak in accordance with 
Paragraph 1.6 of the Code.  Furthermore all Members with a Personal 
Interest in a matter being considered at the meeting should consider, 
having regard to Part 5, Paragraph 4 of the Code, whether such interest 
should be declared, and having regard to Part 5, Paragraph 5 of the 
Code, consider whether it is appropriate to leave the meeting while the 
matter is discussed, save for exercising any right to speak in accordance 
with the Code. 
  

3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 3 - 8) 
 
 To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting. 

  

Public Document Pack



4. DEPUTATIONS   
 
 To receive any deputations notified under Standing Order 12. 

  
5. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS   
 
 To receive any announcements the Chairman may wish to make. 

  
6. BASINGSTOKE CANAL  (Pages 9 - 24) 
 
 To pre-scrutinise a report for the Executive Member for Countryside and 

Regulatory Services regarding proposed changes to the governance and 
operation of the Basingstoke Canal Authority – which acts as a delivery 
agent for the management of the Basingstoke Canal on behalf of 
Hampshire County Council. 
  

7. WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 25 - 28) 
 
 To review the current work programme for the Universal Services Select 

Committee. 
 

 
 
ABOUT THIS MEETING: 
The press and public are welcome to attend the public sessions of the 
meeting. If you have any particular requirements, for example if you require 
wheelchair access, please contact members.services@hants.gov.uk for 
assistance. 
 
 
County Councillors attending as appointed members of this Committee or by 
virtue of Standing Order 18.5; or with the concurrence of the Chairman in 
connection with their duties as members of the Council or as a local County 
Councillor qualify for travelling expenses. 

mailto:members.services@hants.gov.uk


 

AT A MEETING of the Universal Services Select Committee of HAMPSHIRE 
COUNTY COUNCIL held at the Castle, Winchester on Monday, 15th January, 

2024 
 

Chairman: 
* Councillor Rob Mocatta 

 
* Councillor Jackie Branson 
* Councillor Lulu Bowerman 
  Councillor Rod Cooper 
  Councillor Debbie Curnow-Ford 
* Councillor David Drew 
* Councillor Barry Dunning 
* Councillor Michael Ford 
* Councillor Tim Groves 
* Councillor Dominic Hiscock 
* Councillor Wayne Irish 
* Councillor Rupert Kyrle 
* Councillor Sarah Pankhurst 
* Councillor Stephen Parker 
* Councillor Stephen Reid 

* Councillor Kim Taylor 
  Councillor Rhydian Vaughan MBE 
   
 

 
* present  

  
34.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies were noted from Councillors Debbie Curnow-Ford, Rod Cooper and 
Rhydian Vaughan. 
  

35.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Members were mindful that where they believed they had a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest in any matter considered at the meeting they must declare 
that interest at the time of the relevant debate and, having regard to the 
circumstances described in Part 3, Paragraph 1.5 of the County Council's 
Members' Code of Conduct, leave the meeting while the matter was discussed, 
save for exercising any right to speak in accordance with Paragraph 1.6 of the 
Code. Furthermore Members were mindful that where they believed they had a 
Personal Interest in a matter being considered at the meeting they considered 
whether such interest should be declared, and having regard to Part 5, 
Paragraph 5 of the Code, considered whether it was appropriate to leave the 
meeting whilst the matter was discussed, save for exercising any right to speak 
in accordance with the Code 
  

36.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the last meeting were reviewed and agreed. 
 
 
 
  

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

37.   DEPUTATIONS  
 
Councilllor Mark Cooper spoke on item 8 of the agenda, Traffic Management 
Policy Update: 20MPH Speed Limits and Zones, as the local Member. 
  

38.   CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
There were no formal announcements. 
  

39.   UNIVERSAL SERVICES PROPOSED CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2024/25, 
2025/26 AND 2026/27  
 
The Chairman agreed to receive the presentation and allow questions and 
debate for items 6 and 7 of the agenda together under item 6.  
  
The Director introduced the proposed capital programme for 2024-2027 and the 
Revenue Budget for 2024/25. Members heard that: 
  

         The December settlement was broadly neutral, although slightly lower 
than forecasted expectations. 

         The cash limit for Universal services had increased by 6%, predominantly 
to meet a £7m increase for inflation, primarily resulting from increases in 
the highway maintenance and waste disposal contracts.  

         C.£1 had been added to the budget for the impact of the removal of 
charges for DIY waste at Household Waste Recycling Centres (HWRC) 
based on savings when charges were introduced, however the full impact 
was expected to be double this based on current costs.  

         Income and recharges contributed approximately 45% of the overall 
revenue budget for Universal Services. 

         £9.5m of T2021 and SP2023 savings were to be achieved throughout 
2024/25, and Members were assured that should the projected savings  
not be delivered in year then any deficit would be met from the cost of 
change reserve. 

         From 2025/2026 funds for capital investment would only be transferred 
from the revenue budget on an as needed basis, to avoid any 
unnecessary build up in the capital investment reserve. 

         It was highlighted that the deterioration of the highways network, 
particularly following the winter of 2022 and unfavourable conditions 
during winter 2023/24, was a key challenge for the department and 
spending plans.  

         Through the Stronger Roads Today Programme the County Council had 
secured additional resources to support maintenance of the network and 
taking this innovative approach had placed the Council in a more 
favourable position than others. 
Staff retention, resilience and wellbeing was an ongoing focus, with the 
directorate recognising the importance of keeping staff motivated to 
deliver the best service for Hampshire residents. Members heard it had 
been a demanding year with staff supporting and embedding a new, large 
directorate coupled with development of SP25 proposals, but that officers 
had risen to the challenge and the Council’s innovative approaches and 

Page 4



 

ways of working enabled it to be better placed than some other authorities 
and businesses in the private sector. 
  

In response to Members questions it was heard that: 
  

         Provision was made centrally for the annual staff pay award, and once 
the award level was confirmed the necessary budget would be transferred 
to individual directorates to meet any costs. 

         Whilst income already represented 45% of the revenue budget, the 
directorate continued to look for opportunities to maximise and increase 
this. It was noted, as an example, Hampshire Transport Management was 
fully self-funding/sustaining.  

         Allocation of central government funding for highway maintenance was 
based on network length, rather than usage, with those areas with higher 
classification roads receiving increased funding. It was considered that 
the formula was a reasonably fair method.  

         The Council held extensive metrics around claims for damage caused by 
potholes. Data was not specifically held regarding the types of tyres 
damaged, although it was understood that lower profile tyres, which were 
increasing in use, were more susceptible to damage. 

         No additional allowance had been made within the capital budget to 
provide for local communities and councils to bid for funding for 
automated crossings, as School Crossing provision was subject to the 
current public consultation.  

         The Directorate worked closely with Hampshire 2050 to prioritise spend 
on those bus routes which were to form part of future strategic priorities. 
The strategy focussed on providing pump prime funding to bus service 
operators so routes could become self-sustaining in the future, rather than 
using resources to sustain services which were no longer financially 
viable. 

         With costs for road maintenance increasing ahead of available income, 
the Directorate would be looking to deliver proactive approaches 
wherever possible, such as resurfacing roads, rather than reactive actions 
such as patching, to enable longer term sustainability. 

      £106,000 was set aside in the budget to deliver the provision of flood 
defences, which would form part of the overall, partially grant funded, 
£24.9m programme. It was noted that, as a starts-based programme, the 
figures within the report did not include the value of schemes currently in 
design and delivery, but where works started in prior years. It was heard 
that £1.5m of this overall funding was set aside to develop future flood 
programmes beyond 2025.   

         Income generated from recycling would no longer be passed onto to 
District and Borough Councils. Members heard that the Council were 
entitled to remove this funding several years ago and had identified this 
was the appropriate time to do so, following significant notice and 
engagement with District and Borough Councils. It was hoped that this 
considered approach would prevent any disruption to or reduction in 
recycling rates 

  
Councillors Bowerman, Drew, Kyrle and Mocatta declared a personal interest, as 
Cabinet Members within their own local authorities with responsibility for waste 
disposal and recycling. 

Page 5



 

  
         The Directorate were considering a number of infrastructure proposals, to 

drive maximum efficiency out of the waste system and looking to mitigate 
costs through working collectively with Portsmouth and Southampton.  

         It was further noted that Hampshire was the first authority in the UK to 
use household technology to identify if upholstery contained specific 
chemicals which would require a separate disposal process, allowing 
those which did not to be disposed of through the standard waste process 
and generating significant savings. 

Through debate it was heard that funding for the rapid transport link in 
Basingstoke would form part of the Highways Planning process through 
Hampshire 2050. 
  
Members acknowledged the challenging future ahead, with a need to meet to 
statutory legal provision, whilst delivering a proactive programme of work to keep 
Hampshire fit for the future, against a reduction in available funding. The 
Committee offered their thanks to officers for bringing forward a balanced budget 
for 2024/25 and for the proposals presented which would make good use of the 
resources available. 
  
RESOLVED: 
  
That the Select Committee Supports the recommendations being proposed to 
the Executive Lead Member for Universal Services in paragraphs 2 to 14 (page 
1) of the attached report.  
   

40.   2024/25 REVENUE BUDGET REPORT FOR UNIVERSAL SERVICES  
 
RESOLVED: 
  
That the Select Committee Supports the recommendations being proposed to 
the Executive Lead Member for Universal Services in section B of the attached 
report.  
  
The Chairman called a 10 minute adjournment at this point. 
  

41.   TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT POLICY UPDATE: 20 MPH SPEED LIMITS & 
ZONES  
 
The Committee received a report from the Director of Universal Services 
outlining the recommendations of a review of the existing position on 20mph 
speed limits for pre-scrutiny ahead of consideration by the Executive Lead 
Member for Universal Services. 
  
In response to Members questions it was heard that: 
  

         Flexibility in location for Speed Indication Devices (SID) was needed, and 
the County Council could provide sockets and posts to support local 
councils to place these in locations where 20mph limits were being 
considered. 

Page 6



 

         Driver compliance would be key in delivering any 20mph speed limit 
changes without significant demand on police enforcement measures. 

         An initial £175 application assessment fee was proposed, to be met by 
the applicant, to allow any unsuitable application to be ruled out before 
significant investment in time or financially was made by local councils 
and residents. 

         The Council would continue to work with developers to identify where it 
would be appropriate to include 20mph speed limits at the planning stage.  

         The Directorate would, wherever possible, look to batch Traffic 
Regulation Orders (TRO) to reduce costs, however it was noted that this 
was unlikely to be appropriate where there were multiple locations applied 
for. 

         Six areas had been identified which were non parished and therefore the 
County Council would work with the appropriate District Council, if the 
scheme was approved, to look at how applications from residents in these 
areas could be supported. 

         Section 106 and Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) funding could be 
considered to support applications. 

         The scheme was proposed to operate on a full cost recovery basis and to 
meet demand the Council would draw in additional capacity as needed 
from consultants and public sector partners.  
  

Through debate it was suggested by the Committee, if the proposal was agreed 
by the Executive Lead Member that: 
  

         The Committee receive a report in 12 months, to review the procedure 
and the use of the scheme and that this be added to the Committee’s 
work plan. Whilst it was proposed that the scheme be reviewed by the 
Committee after a year, any issues should be brought before that time if 
necessary. 

         That self-assessment documentation be created, including an outline of 
potential costs, to enable potential applicants to de-select themselves if 
their application would not be eligible. Through this the Committee would 
suggest that there would be a reduction in demand on the workload of the 
Directorate and would allow applicants to avoid unnecessary costs. 

  
The Executive Lead Member welcomed the Committee’s views and discussion, 
which would be taken into consideration when reviewing the decision to be 
taken. 
  
RESOLVED: 
  
That the Universal Services Select Committee supports the recommendations 
being proposed to the Executive Lead Member for Universal Services in 
paragraphs 2 and 3 of the attached report. 
   

42.   WORK PROGRAMME  
 
It was noted, as per discussion under item 8 of the agenda, that a review of the 
Traffic Management Policy Update: 20 mph Speed Limits & Zones would be 
added to the work programme for January 2025. 

Page 7



 

  
RESOLVED: 
  
That the Universal Services Select Committee discuss and agree potential items 
for the work programme that can be prioritised and allocated by the Chairman of 
the Universal Services Select Committee in consultation with the Director of 
Universal Services. 
 
 
 
 
  
 Chairman, 11 March 2023 
 

Page 8



 

 

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Report 
 
Committee: Universal Services Select Committee 

Date: 11 March 2024 

Title: Basingstoke Canal 

Report From: Director of Universal Services 

Contact name: Jo Heath 

Email: Jo.Heath@hants.gov.uk   
 

Purpose of Report 
1. For the Universal Services Select Committee to pre-scrutinise the proposals 

for changes to the governance and operation of the Basingstoke Canal 
Authority (see report attached due to be considered at the decision day of the 
Executive Lead Member for Universal Services at 2.00pm. on 11 March 2024).  

Recommendation 
2. That the Universal Services Select Committee supports the recommendations 

being proposed to the Executive Lead Member for Universal Services in 
paragraphs 2. – 5. of the attached report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Decision Report 
 
Decision Maker: Executive Member for Countryside and Regulatory Services 

Date: 11 March 2024 

Title: Basingstoke Canal 

Report From: Director of Universal Services 

Contact name: Jo Heath 

Email:   Jo.heath@hants.gov.uk   

Purpose of this Report 
1. The purpose of this report is to set out the proposed changes to the governance 

and operation of the Basingstoke Canal Authority – which acts as a delivery 
agent for the management of the Basingstoke Canal, on behalf of the 
landowning authorities, Hampshire and Surrey County Councils. 

Recommendations 
2. That the Executive Member for Countryside and Regulatory Services approves 

changes to the governance and operation of the Basingstoke Canal Authority 
(BCA) as detailed within this report. 

3. That the Executive Member for Countryside and Regulatory Services delegates 
authority to the Director of Universal Services in consultation with the Head of 
Legal Services to agree and enter into the necessary Memorandums of 
Understanding, Agreements and arrangements with partners, that will underpin 
the updated governance. 

4. That the Executive Member for Countryside and Regulatory Services takes this 
decision in the context of Hampshire County Council’s role as one of two 
landowning authorities for the Basingstoke Canal (alongside Surrey County 
Council), on behalf of whom the BCA acts as a delivery agent. 

5. That, subject to a parallel decision by the Executive Member at Surrey County 
Council (to be taken on 26 March), these changes come into effect from 1 April 
2024. 

Executive Summary  
6. This paper seeks to set out the proposed changes to the governance and 

operation of the Basingstoke Canal Authority – which acts as a delivery agent 
for the management of the Canal, on behalf of Hampshire and Surrey County 
Councils. 

7. There are significant drivers for change to the management and operation of the 
canal.  In particular, the canal is not currently financially sustainable, and the 

Page 11



 

 

paper seeks to demonstrate how the proposed changes will seek to move it 
towards greater financial sustainability. 

 
Background 
8. The Basingstoke Canal, which is 32 miles in length, was jointly acquired by 

Hampshire and Surrey County Councils in the 1970s, to manage risks (notably 
flooding), protect the Canal and provide for public recreation. 

9. The Canal is designated as a Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) and due 
to its hydrological biodiversity and the effective management of its ecosystem, is 
home to numerous nationally scarce species of flora and fauna.  As an 
accessible green and blue space, it also delivers well documented benefits to 
physical and mental health, and wellbeing. 

10. The Basingstoke Canal Partnership was established to fund the operation of the 
Canal following restoration in late 1980’s.  The partnership includes a number of 
riparian partners (District, Borough and Town Councils) that contribute 
financially to the running of the Canal as per a Memorandum of Agreement.  
Governance is undertaken via the Canal’s Joint Management Committee (JMC). 

11. Subsequent to this, the two County Councils, as landowning authorities, formed 
the Basingstoke Canal Authority (BCA) in 1990 to operate and manage the 
Canal.  Under this arrangement Hampshire County Council employs the BCA 
staff working under Hampshire County Council policies, and provides IT & 
Finance support, while Surrey County Council provides the main operational 
base and visitor centre at Mytchett as well as Democratic Services support. 

12. The funding and governance model described above has since formed the basis 
for how the Canal is managed, up until this point. 

Drivers for Change 
 
13. The current operation of the Canal is not financially sustainable: In 2023/24 

costs will require a projected draw of £192,000 on existing reserves to cover a 
shortfall in income.  On the basis income and expenditure of the Canal 
continues as is, these reserves are expected to be fully depleted by 2026/27. 
 

14. The Canal is funded by the landowning authorities and the riparian funding 
partners, utilising a funding formula which is based around population in 
proximity to the Canal.  A breakdown of how the Canal is funded is included as 
Appendix A to this document.  Some Basingstoke Canal Partnership members 
have either reduced or withdrawn partnership contributions.  The financial 
implications of this are significant - if all funding partners had 
maintained previous (index linked) contributions, financial sustainability would 
not be an issue.   

 
15. Commercial activity is also limited:  Over a number of years there has been 

significant growth in income from 5% to 30% (operating budget).  However, 
growth plateaued at the time of the Covid ‘19 pandemic with further growth 
opportunities now limited and would requiring significant investment.  
  

 

Page 12



 

 

MACE Review 

16. Having identified emerging issues around financial sustainability, Hampshire 
County Council and Surrey County Council commissioned Mace Ltd to review 
management of the Canal and recommend a sustainable operating model.  
 

17. Mace was directed to prioritise delivery of each County Council’s statutory 
obligations, to:  
• provide for Safe operation of the Canal 
• fulfill Conservation duties in relation to the Site of Special Scientific Interest 
• ensure the Health and Wellbeing of residents – public rights of access and 

navigation (noting that this obligation exists only in the case of small boats, 
and not larger (motorised) craft 

 
18. Mace undertook a detailed review of the statutory responsibilities, risks and 

financial position as well as the current operational and governance model. A 
number of options were considered, and a preferred option was presented to 
the Basingstoke Canal Joint Management Committee in November 2023.   

 
 
Preferred Option 

19. A number of management options for the canal were explored by MACE, as 
follows (and further detailed in Appendix B): 
• Option 1: Do Nothing 
• Option 2: Change Ownership 
• Option 3: Change Management Model (remove the BCA) 
• Option 4: the BCA delivers Statutory Functions only 
• Option 5: the BCA delivers Statutory Functions and enables leisure 

navigation 
 

20. The recommended and preferred option was Option 5, that the BCA should 
continue to deliver statutory requirements, plus leisure navigation, for maximum 
financial viability.  

 
21. Under this preferred option, the BCA will no longer deliver other non-statutory 

activities such as boat hire, camping, running the visitor centre, and events. 
 
22. As part of this approach, it was recommended that changes were also made to 

how the Canal is governed, noting that the BCA has no legal or corporate 
identity; that the Memorandum of Understanding with partners is outdated 
(particularly in reference to funding contributions as per para 11); and, that the 
Canal’s Joint Management Committee is not effective in current form to meet 
the challenges the canal now faces, with operational decisions made by the 
Canal Management Team (Hampshire County Council and Surrey County 
Council officers) and strategic decisions made by landowning authority 
governance structures. 

 

 

Page 13



 

 

Proposed Changes to Operating Model 
23. Under the revised operating model, the BCA will be retained as delivery agent 

for the Canal (on behalf of Hampshire County Council and Surrey County 
Council).  It will no longer deliver visitor services activities and will focus on 
meeting statutory obligations and navigation. 

24. A new agreement between the two landowning authorities will be established, to 
regularise working relationships and financial contributions.  Ongoing capital 
funding will be required from both authorities to enable safe management of 
canal assets. 

25. New Service Level Agreements will also be agreed with riparian funding 
partners; whose ongoing financial contribution will be encouraged, and where 
agreed, secured for a minimum period. 

26. The Canal Centre at Mytchett (where visitor services are based) will revert to 
the direct management of Surrey County Council (which is the owner of the 
building, and entitled to make decisions upon its future use, with Hampshire 
County Council being kept informed).  The BCA will, however, continue to be 
based at the Mytchett Centre.  

27. BCA staff are managed as Hampshire County Council employees for HR & 
Administrative purpose.  The 3 members of BCA staff most closely associated 
with Visitor Centre Activity will transfer to the employment of Surrey County 
Council via a TUPE process.  Consultation with these staff has already been 
undertaken, with the completion of process now subject to both authorities’ 
decision making processes. 

Proposed Changes to Canal Governance  
28. Current governance arrangements are in need of review in the context of the 

challenges the Canal is facing.   
29. The Basingstoke Canal Authority was established in 1990 to operate and 

manage the canal, but has no legal or corporate identity.   
30. There is a Memorandum of Agreement with riparian partners but this is outdated 

given the change in partner contributions and how decisions are made. 
31. Finally, the Canal’s Joint Management Committee is a key element of 

governance but is not effective in its current form to meet the challenges the 
Canal now faces: with operational decisions made by the Canal Management 
Team (Hampshire County Council & Surrey County Council officers) and 
strategic decisions by landowning authority governance structures. 

32. The proposed new governance arrangements for the Canal reflect the 
responsibilities for how decisions are made and also reduced remit of the BCA. 
They will provide greater clarity on working arrangements between partners and 
those bodies that are accountable for liabilities. It is founded upon the following 
bodies:  

a. The Basingstoke Canal Management Team – responsible for 
operational management of the Canal and made up of Senior 
responsible officers and finance from the two County Councils.  

b. A Basingstoke Canal Joint Board – made up of Hampshire County 
Council & Surrey County Council elected Members only. With two 

Page 14



 

 

representatives per authority. This body will provide oversight of the 
management of the Canal and will make recommendations to the 
Executive Member for decision at the respective authorities.   

c. An Advisory Panel to JMC – an advisory panel consisting of experts 
in the field of local authority finance, inland waterway management, 
public access and biodiversity or such other experts as it deems 
appropriate to assist in its role as a scrutiny Board for the Basingstoke 
Canal.  

d. The Basingstoke Canal Society (BCS) - via a new memorandum of 
understanding with both landowning authorities, that in turn sets out 
the working relationships between BCS and BCA.  

e. A wider partnership of riparian authorities – with an updated MOA 
demonstrating commitment from all partners, including Hampshire 
County Council, Surrey County Council and funding partners. This 
partnership will be facilitated via two meetings a year and an annual 
report, alongside regular ongoing engagement.  

f. Other stakeholders and user representatives, including non-funding 
riparian partners, user groups and other partners will be invited to an 
annual meeting and a site visit in the Summer; to raise awareness of 
the Canal, share information, create a forum for feedback and seek 
support. 

The proposed governance model is shown in Appendix C. 
Finance 
33. If the landowning authorities were to “do nothing” (an option considered and 

rejected by the MACE report), it was projected that Canal Reserves would fall 
under the minimum unallocated reserve balance of £200,000, by 2025/26; and 
run out in 2026/27. 

34. At the time of the MACE commission, the proposed preferred approach set out 
in this report was projected to improve financial sustainability; and, significantly 
delay the point at which reserves would be fully utilised.  Since then, the 
financial position of the Canal has deteriorated with a further reduction in partner 
contributions meaning that, based on current projections, the proposed 
approach would only delay the point at which reserves are depleted by one 
year. 

35. The financial position of the Canal has continued to deteriorate with all of the 
£120,000 currently contributed by the riparian partners (included within the table 
below) now considered to be at risk.    

36. However, the proposed approach still minimises the ongoing annual deficit in 
providing statutory services; reduces the risk involved from income generation 
needed to offset the c. £200,000 per annum gross costs of running the Visitor 
Centre; and, has been assessed by officers as providing the greatest 
opportunity to move towards financial sustainability, particularly if partner 
contributions are reinstated (as has been indicated as a possibility).   
 

Page 15



 

 

37. Please see the below table ref: updated financial position resulting from the 
proposed approach: 
 

 Do nothing 
£’000  

 

Preferred Option 
£’000 

 
Canal Centre costs (including staffing, 
premises etc) 

200 0 

Canal Centre income (156) 0 
Staffing, premises, supplies and services, 
transport 

537 537 

Maintenance and Surveys 172 172 
Hampshire and Surrey County Council 
contributions* 

(306) (306) 

Other Riparian Partner contributions (120) (120) 
Commercial income (187) (187) 
Annual draw on reserves 140 96 
   
Year in which unallocated reserve falls below 
£200k minimum** 

2025/26 2026/27 

Year in which unallocated reserve is fully 
depleted** 

2027/28 2028/29 

*NB this does not include Strategic Management costs and contributions in kind such as 
the finance costs, democratic support costs and IT costs 

** a further table detailing reserves position is included as Appendix D. 

38. It is important to note that riparian funding contributions, which were initially 
agreed at a total level of £240,000 per annum, have already reduced to 
£120,000 per annum and are expected to reduce further still, potentially being 
removed altogether, in the context of Canal’s overall financial position. 

39. Without the riparian partner contributions, even under the preferred option 
reserves will be fully depleted in 2026/27, and it is likely that Hampshire and 
Surrey County Councils as the landowning authorities would need to increase 
their annual contributions in order to ensure that, as a minimum, statutory 
responsibilities are met.  

40. As per Para. 21, ongoing Capital Funding will also be required from the 
landowning authorities.  A Hampshire County Council allocation of £500,000 per 
annum had previously been agreed, up until 2024/25, but there is currently no 
allocation beyond 2025/26. 

41. It is suggested that the minimum requirement for Hampshire County Council 
Capital Funding is £300,000 per annum to undertake priority works to keep the 
Canal safely operational for the period spanning 2025/26-2027/28. This does 
not account for any additional costs that might arise due to unforeseen 
circumstances. The £300,000 per annum further funding is currently not part of 
the Universal Services Capital Programme, but will be considered for inclusion 
as part of the next capital priorities review in accordance with standard 
procedures. 

Page 16



 

 

Consultation and Equalities 
42. Consultation with regards to the proposed approach has been undertaken with 

riparian partners and other stakeholders.  A report was delivered to the Canal’s 
Joint Management Committee (in current form) on 20th November 2023. 

43. JMC Members were then invited to comment further upon proposals in writing 
before 30 January 2024 in advance of an Executive Member Decision 
subsequently being taken by both landowning authorities – with no responses 
received. 

44. In parallel to this, letters were sent to the Chief Executives of riparian funding 
partners, seeking to confirm onward funding contributions, in the context of the 
current financial position, and proposed changes to how the Canal is managed. 

45. No further consultation has been required with reference to these proposals, 
beyond consultation with limited numbers of staff with regards to the TUPE 
process to Surrey County Council, as the decision does not impact upon core 
elements of public facing service delivery. 

46. For similar reasons, no specific impacts upon protected characteristics have 
been identified as part of the Equality Statement, which has identified a neutral 
impact on these groups. 

Climate Change Impact Assessments 
 
47. Hampshire County Council utilises two decision-making tools to assess the 

carbon emissions and resilience of its projects and decisions.  These tools 
provide a clear, robust, and transparent way of assessing how projects, policies 
and initiatives contribute towards the County Council’s climate change targets of 
being carbon neutral and resilient to the impacts of a 2℃ temperature rise by 
2050. This process ensures that climate change considerations are built into 
everything the Authority does. 
 

Climate Change Adaptation 
 
48. As this decision purely relates to the governance and operations of the Canal, 

the Climate Change adaptation tool was not relevant.  The tool will be used in 
future in relation to any proposals that alter, or have impact upon, the physical 
infrastructure of the Canal. 
 

Carbon Mitigation 
 

49. As this decision purely relates to the governance and operations of the Canal, 
the Carbon Mitigation tool was not relevant.  The tool will be used in future in 
relation to any proposals that alter, or have impact upon, the physical 
infrastructure of the Canal. 
 

 

Page 17



 

 

REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION: 
 

Links to the Strategic Plan 
Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic 
growth and prosperity: 

no 

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent 
lives: 

yes 

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse 
environment: 

yes 

People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, 
inclusive communities: 

no 

 
 
 
 
Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents 
  
The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any 
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 
the Act.) 
 
Document Location 
None  

 
 

Page 18



 

 

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT: 

1. Equality Duty 
The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 
(‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to: 
- Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other 

conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected 
characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation); 

- Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, 
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex 
and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it; 

- Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who 
do not share it.  

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to: 
- The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons 

sharing a relevant characteristic connected to that characteristic; 
- Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected 

characteristic different from the needs of persons who do not share it; 
- Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to 

participate in public life or in any other activity which participation by such 
persons is disproportionally low. 

2. Equalities Impact Assessment: 
 

The proposal is with regard to the Operation of the Basingstoke Canal (seeking to 
achieve greater financial sustainability and updated governance); and does not 
impact upon core elements of Service Delivery.  There is therefore no notable 
impact upon any groups, including those with protected characteristics, and the 
impact is assessed as neutral.  

Page 19



 

 

Appendix A – Partnership Funding Contributions 2023/24 
 

  
Notes: 

• Woking Borough Council 50% reduction 24/25 (12 mths notice 
received now confirmed to be 100% reduction) 

• Rushmoor 100% reduction 23/24  
• Surrey Heath Borough Council contribution is less than that in the MOA 
• Hart District Council shares contribution with Fleet and PC’s 

  

Page 20



 

 

Appendix B – Detailed Options 
 
Option 1 Do Nothing  
Maintain the current model of operation with ongoing requirement to utilise reserves, largely 
due to the reducing contributions being made by District Authority Partners. 
 
The Canal budget would continue to cover Management, Operations and Maintenance, 
Administration and Commercial activities and would be under increasing financial pressure 
due to inflation, static contributions from all authorities and limited ability to capitalise on 
the commercial activities which have helped bridge the gap between income and costs.  
 
Given the current climate of increased inflationary costs, inefficient governance and 
operational management and limited prospect [under the management of the BCA] of major 
additional commercialisation this option poses significant financial risks to HCC and SCC.  
  
  
Option 2 Change Ownership  
The transfer of ownership of the Canal has been considered previously and following 
discussions with the Canal and River Trust (CRT) this option was not financially viable.  
 
The creation of a Community Interest Company (CIC) has been considered, with a CIC 
operating the Canal under a lease transfer, however the liability risk against the asset 
remains too great when set against the benefits lost and was therefore not pursued. This 
option would not address the fundamental financial issues of the current operations of the 
canal.  
  
  
Option 3 Change Management Model (remove BCA)  
The option to disband the BCA, allowing HCC and SCC to manage their sections of the 
canal, realises a number of key benefits, vastly reducing level and [internal] cost of 
governance structures, i.e., no JMC in this model and placing more autonomy on what each 
Authority choses to do with their retained assets.  
 
However, by removing the BCA there is a much-increased cost of operation incurred by 
both authorities to ensure their statutory and critical duties are met, due to the requirement 
to have minimum staffing levels for key health and Safety operations. Under this model 
there are still tasks requiring joint working as a single body of water does not respect county 
borders and actions in one area can have consequences elsewhere, there are also 
efficiencies lost as some partnering is not capitalised.  
  
  
Option 4 Retain the BCA, to coordinate and deliver Statutory Minimum activities.  
Retaining the BCA to deliver a statutory minimum1 level of service is operationally the 
most efficient method of delivering the joint responsibilities that HCC and SCC have 
regarding the Canal, with the exception of managing some differing asset policy 
requirements, again this reduces the governance layers. None of the current commercial 
activities have any statutory requirements (Boat Hire, Canal Centre & Camping) which the 
BCA contribute to/run, so costs and income associated with these is discounted, with the 
owning Authority making separate studies to determine their viability. The requirement to 
keep the canal navigable is necessary to ensure access for key maintenance, however 
income from leisure craft is discounted as is the cost of Lock Keepers required to enable 
this activity. The reduced remit also offers the potential to redistribute resource within wider 
operations and reduce the cost of staff and premises/maintenance; however, this reduces 

Page 21



 

 

the commercial income. There is no positive net gain in this option, financially there is a 
risk, that by removing Navigation would lead to a reduced input from volunteers, and there 
may further result in a risk of legal challenge should [leisure] Navigation be removed.   
  
  
  
Option 5 Retain the BCA, deliver Statutory Minimum activities and enable Leisure 
Navigation  
This is the same as Option 4 but adds back the commercial activity associated with 
Navigation. The requirement to keep the canal navigable is necessary to ensure access for 
key maintenance, therefore the additional cost to enable [Leisure] Navigation, primarily 
resides with the employment of Lock Keepers to ensure safe passage through the canal 
system. The additional cost of this is comfortably offset with the additional commercial 
income received by Moorings and associated reduced draw on reserves.  
  

Page 22



 

 

Appendix C – Governance Proposal 
 
 

 
 
 
  

Page 23



 

 

Appendix D – Unallocated Reserves 
 

Unallocated Reserve Projected Balance 

Do Nothing 
£ 

Preferred 
Option 

£ 

Preferred 
Option with 
no partner 

contributions 
£ 

    
Balance as at 31st March 2023 (593,263) (593,263) (593,263) 
    
Income (Interest on Balances) (34,224) (34,224) (34,224) 
        
Transfers From/(To) Reserves 192,000  192,000  192,000  
        
Projected Balance as at 31st March 2024 (435,487) (435,487) (435,487) 
    
Projected Income (Interest on Balances) (14,513) (16,513)  (10,513) 
        
Budgeted Transfers From/(To) Reserves 140,000  96,000  216,000  
        
Projected Balance as at 31st March 2025 (310,000) (356,000) (230,000) 
    
Projected Income (Interest on Balances) (9,000) (13,000)  (1,000) 
        
Budgeted Transfers From/(To) Reserves 140,000  96,000  216,000  
        
Projected Balance as at 31st March 2026 (179,000) (273,000) (15,000) 
    
Projected Income (Interest on Balances) (2,000) (9,000)  0 
        
Budgeted Transfers From/(To) Reserves 140,000  96,000  216,000  
        
Projected Balance as at 31st March 2027 (41,000) (186,000) Fully depleted 
    
Projected Income (Interest on Balances) 0 (5,000)   
       
Budgeted Transfers From/(To) Reserves 140,000  96,000   
        
Projected Balance as at 31st March 2028 Fully depleted (95,000)  
    
Projected Income (Interest on Balances)  0   
      
Budgeted Transfers From/(To) Reserves  96,000   
      
Projected Balance as at 31st March 2029  Fully depleted  

 
* In addition to the unallocated reserve there is an £80,000 ringfenced reserve specifically 
for works at Wellesley, therefore not included within the figures above. 

Page 24



HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Report 
 
Committee: Universal Services Select Committee 

Date: 11 March 2024 

Title: Work Programme 

Report From: Director of People and Organisation 

Contact name: Katy Sherwood, Senior Democratic Services Officer 

  Email: katy.sherwood@hants.gov.uk 

1. Summary  
1.1. The purpose of this item is to provide the work programme of future topics to be 

considered by this Select Committee and discuss any other items that may 
need to be added.  

2. Recommendation 
 
That the Universal Services Select Committee discuss and agree potential 
items for the work programme that can be prioritised and allocated by the 
Chairman of the Universal Services Select Committee in consultation with the 
Director of Universal Services. 
 

 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



Integral Appendix A 
 

CORPORATE OR LEGAL INFORMATION: 
 

Links to the Strategic Plan 
 
Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic 
growth and prosperity: 

yes 

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent 
lives: 

yes 

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse 
environment: 

no 

People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, 
inclusive communities: 

no 

 
 

 
 
 
 
Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents 
  
The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any 
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 
the Act.) 
 
Document Location 
None  

Page 26



Integral Appendix B 
 

IMPACT ASSESSMENTS: 
 
1. Equality Duty 

1.1. The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (‘the Act’) 
to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to: 

• Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct 
prohibited under the Act; 

• Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic (age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, gender and sexual orientation) and those who do not 
share it; 

• Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it.  

 
Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to: 

a) The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing a relevant 
characteristic connected to that characteristic; 

b)  Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic 
different from the needs of persons who do not share it; 

c)  Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate in public 
life or in any other activity which participation by such persons is disproportionally low. 
 

1.2. Equalities Impact Assessment: 

1.3. This is a forward plan of topics under consideration by the Select Committee, 
therefore this section is not applicable to this report. The Committee will request 
appropriate impact assessments to be undertaken should this be relevant for any topic 
that the Committee is reviewing.  
 

2. Impact on Crime and Disorder: 

2.1. This is a forward plan of topics under consideration by the Select Committee, 
therefore this section is not applicable to this report. The Committee will request 
appropriate impact assessments to be undertaken should this be relevant for any 
topic that the Committee is reviewing.  
 

3. Climate Change: 

a) How does what is being proposed impact on our carbon footprint / energy 
consumption? 

b) How does what is being proposed consider the need to adapt to climate change, and 
be resilient to its longer term impacts? 
 
This is a forward plan of topics under consideration by the Select Committee, therefore 
this section is not applicable to this report. The Committee will consider climate 
change when approaching topics that impact upon our carbon footprint / energy 
consumption.

Page 27



 
WORK PROGRAMME – UNIVERSAL SERVICES SELECT COMMITTEE 

(Red = changes/additions since last meeting) 
 

Topic Issue Reason for inclusion Status and Outcomes 

 J
un

e 
&

 1
 J

ul
y 

20
24

 

 2
1 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

24
 

20 
January
2025 

Pre-Scrutiny 
SP25 Task and Finish 
Working Group Feedback 
and Pre-Scrutiny 

Following work of the Task & 
Finish Group in early 2024 

Tuesday 25 June 
Wednesday 26 June 
Friday 28 June  
 

 
 
 

  

For review 20mph Speed Limit Policy To look at progress following 
the first year of pilots 

May fall back to March 
2025 meeting 

   
 

 
Potential future items: 
- Waste and Collaborative working  
- Review of Project Integra Governance   
- US Communications strategy/customer contact       
- Highways maintenance (to include verges, landscaping, working with utility companies and learning more on the process of unadopted 
roads) 
- Emerging local plan at Basingstoke 
 
Longer term following work by H2050:   
- Carbon management 
- Calshot 
- Feasibility studies of BSIP+ funding (para 96 of Capital report 15/1/24) 
 

P
age 28


	Agenda
	The press and public are welcome to attend the public sessions of the meeting. If you have any particular requirements, for example if you require wheelchair access, please contact members.services@hants.gov.uk for assistance.

	3 Minutes of previous meeting
	6 Basingstoke Canal
	HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
	Report
	Purpose of Report
	1.	For the Universal Services Select Committee to pre-scrutinise the proposals for changes to the governance and operation of the Basingstoke Canal Authority (see report attached due to be considered at the decision day of the Executive Lead Member for Universal Services at 2.00pm. on 11 March 2024).

	Recommendation

	Main Report
	Decision Report
	Purpose of this Report
	1.	The purpose of this report is to set out the proposed changes to the governance and operation of the Basingstoke Canal Authority – which acts as a delivery agent for the management of the Basingstoke Canal, on behalf of the landowning authorities, Hampshire and Surrey County Councils.

	Recommendations
	2.	That the Executive Member for Countryside and Regulatory Services approves changes to the governance and operation of the Basingstoke Canal Authority (BCA) as detailed within this report.
	3.	That the Executive Member for Countryside and Regulatory Services delegates authority to the Director of Universal Services in consultation with the Head of Legal Services to agree and enter into the necessary Memorandums of Understanding, Agreements and arrangements with partners, that will underpin the updated governance.
	4.	That the Executive Member for Countryside and Regulatory Services takes this decision in the context of Hampshire County Council’s role as one of two landowning authorities for the Basingstoke Canal (alongside Surrey County Council), on behalf of whom the BCA acts as a delivery agent.
	5.	That, subject to a parallel decision by the Executive Member at Surrey County Council (to be taken on 26 March), these changes come into effect from 1 April 2024.

	Executive Summary
	6.	This paper seeks to set out the proposed changes to the governance and operation of the Basingstoke Canal Authority – which acts as a delivery agent for the management of the Canal, on behalf of Hampshire and Surrey County Councils.
	7.	There are significant drivers for change to the management and operation of the canal.  In particular, the canal is not currently financially sustainable, and the paper seeks to demonstrate how the proposed changes will seek to move it towards greater financial sustainability.


	Background
	8.	The Basingstoke Canal, which is 32 miles in length, was jointly acquired by Hampshire and Surrey County Councils in the 1970s, to manage risks (notably flooding), protect the Canal and provide for public recreation.
	9.	The Canal is designated as a Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) and due to its hydrological biodiversity and the effective management of its ecosystem, is home to numerous nationally scarce species of flora and fauna.  As an accessible green and blue space, it also delivers well documented benefits to physical and mental health, and wellbeing.
	10.	The Basingstoke Canal Partnership was established to fund the operation of the Canal following restoration in late 1980’s.  The partnership includes a number of riparian partners (District, Borough and Town Councils) that contribute financially to the running of the Canal as per a Memorandum of Agreement.  Governance is undertaken via the Canal’s Joint Management Committee (JMC).
	11.	Subsequent to this, the two County Councils, as landowning authorities, formed the Basingstoke Canal Authority (BCA) in 1990 to operate and manage the Canal.  Under this arrangement Hampshire County Council employs the BCA staff working under Hampshire County Council policies, and provides IT & Finance support, while Surrey County Council provides the main operational base and visitor centre at Mytchett as well as Democratic Services support.
	12.	The funding and governance model described above has since formed the basis for how the Canal is managed, up until this point.

	Drivers for Change
	MACE Review
	Preferred Option
	Proposed Changes to Operating Model
	23.	Under the revised operating model, the BCA will be retained as delivery agent for the Canal (on behalf of Hampshire County Council and Surrey County Council).  It will no longer deliver visitor services activities and will focus on meeting statutory obligations and navigation.
	24.	A new agreement between the two landowning authorities will be established, to regularise working relationships and financial contributions.  Ongoing capital funding will be required from both authorities to enable safe management of canal assets.
	25.	New Service Level Agreements will also be agreed with riparian funding partners; whose ongoing financial contribution will be encouraged, and where agreed, secured for a minimum period.
	26.	The Canal Centre at Mytchett (where visitor services are based) will revert to the direct management of Surrey County Council (which is the owner of the building, and entitled to make decisions upon its future use, with Hampshire County Council being kept informed).  The BCA will, however, continue to be based at the Mytchett Centre.
	27.	BCA staff are managed as Hampshire County Council employees for HR & Administrative purpose.  The 3 members of BCA staff most closely associated with Visitor Centre Activity will transfer to the employment of Surrey County Council via a TUPE process.  Consultation with these staff has already been undertaken, with the completion of process now subject to both authorities’ decision making processes.
	Proposed Changes to Canal Governance
	28.	Current governance arrangements are in need of review in the context of the challenges the Canal is facing.
	29.	The Basingstoke Canal Authority was established in 1990 to operate and manage the canal, but has no legal or corporate identity.
	30.	There is a Memorandum of Agreement with riparian partners but this is outdated given the change in partner contributions and how decisions are made.
	31.	Finally, the Canal’s Joint Management Committee is a key element of governance but is not effective in its current form to meet the challenges the Canal now faces: with operational decisions made by the Canal Management Team (Hampshire County Council & Surrey County Council officers) and strategic decisions by landowning authority governance structures.
	32.	The proposed new governance arrangements for the Canal reflect the responsibilities for how decisions are made and also reduced remit of the BCA. They will provide greater clarity on working arrangements between partners and those bodies that are accountable for liabilities. It is founded upon the following bodies:
	a.	The Basingstoke Canal Management Team – responsible for operational management of the Canal and made up of Senior responsible officers and finance from the two County Councils.
	b.	A Basingstoke Canal Joint Board – made up of Hampshire County Council & Surrey County Council elected Members only. With two representatives per authority. This body will provide oversight of the management of the Canal and will make recommendations to the Executive Member for decision at the respective authorities.
	c.	An Advisory Panel to JMC – an advisory panel consisting of experts in the field of local authority finance, inland waterway management, public access and biodiversity or such other experts as it deems appropriate to assist in its role as a scrutiny Board for the Basingstoke Canal.
	d.	The Basingstoke Canal Society (BCS) - via a new memorandum of understanding with both landowning authorities, that in turn sets out the working relationships between BCS and BCA.
	e.	A wider partnership of riparian authorities – with an updated MOA demonstrating commitment from all partners, including Hampshire County Council, Surrey County Council and funding partners. This partnership will be facilitated via two meetings a year and an annual report, alongside regular ongoing engagement.
	f.	Other stakeholders and user representatives, including non-funding riparian partners, user groups and other partners will be invited to an annual meeting and a site visit in the Summer; to raise awareness of the Canal, share information, create a forum for feedback and seek support.
	The proposed governance model is shown in Appendix C.
	Finance
	33.	If the landowning authorities were to “do nothing” (an option considered and rejected by the MACE report), it was projected that Canal Reserves would fall under the minimum unallocated reserve balance of £200,000, by 2025/26; and run out in 2026/27.
	34.	At the time of the MACE commission, the proposed preferred approach set out in this report was projected to improve financial sustainability; and, significantly delay the point at which reserves would be fully utilised.  Since then, the financial position of the Canal has deteriorated with a further reduction in partner contributions meaning that, based on current projections, the proposed approach would only delay the point at which reserves are depleted by one year.
	35.	The financial position of the Canal has continued to deteriorate with all of the £120,000 currently contributed by the riparian partners (included within the table below) now considered to be at risk.
	36.	However, the proposed approach still minimises the ongoing annual deficit in providing statutory services; reduces the risk involved from income generation needed to offset the c. £200,000 per annum gross costs of running the Visitor Centre; and, has been assessed by officers as providing the greatest opportunity to move towards financial sustainability, particularly if partner contributions are reinstated (as has been indicated as a possibility).
	37.	Please see the below table ref: updated financial position resulting from the proposed approach:
	*NB this does not include Strategic Management costs and contributions in kind such as the finance costs, democratic support costs and IT costs
	** a further table detailing reserves position is included as Appendix D.
	38.	It is important to note that riparian funding contributions, which were initially agreed at a total level of £240,000 per annum, have already reduced to £120,000 per annum and are expected to reduce further still, potentially being removed altogether, in the context of Canal’s overall financial position.
	39.	Without the riparian partner contributions, even under the preferred option reserves will be fully depleted in 2026/27, and it is likely that Hampshire and Surrey County Councils as the landowning authorities would need to increase their annual contributions in order to ensure that, as a minimum, statutory responsibilities are met.
	40.	As per Para. 21, ongoing Capital Funding will also be required from the landowning authorities.  A Hampshire County Council allocation of £500,000 per annum had previously been agreed, up until 2024/25, but there is currently no allocation beyond 2025/26.
	41.	It is suggested that the minimum requirement for Hampshire County Council Capital Funding is £300,000 per annum to undertake priority works to keep the Canal safely operational for the period spanning 2025/26-2027/28. This does not account for any additional costs that might arise due to unforeseen circumstances. The £300,000 per annum further funding is currently not part of the Universal Services Capital Programme, but will be considered for inclusion as part of the next capital priorities review in accordance with standard procedures.
	Consultation and Equalities
	42.	Consultation with regards to the proposed approach has been undertaken with riparian partners and other stakeholders.  A report was delivered to the Canal’s Joint Management Committee (in current form) on 20th November 2023.
	43.	JMC Members were then invited to comment further upon proposals in writing before 30 January 2024 in advance of an Executive Member Decision subsequently being taken by both landowning authorities – with no responses received.
	44.	In parallel to this, letters were sent to the Chief Executives of riparian funding partners, seeking to confirm onward funding contributions, in the context of the current financial position, and proposed changes to how the Canal is managed.
	45.	No further consultation has been required with reference to these proposals, beyond consultation with limited numbers of staff with regards to the TUPE process to Surrey County Council, as the decision does not impact upon core elements of public facing service delivery.
	46.	For similar reasons, no specific impacts upon protected characteristics have been identified as part of the Equality Statement, which has identified a neutral impact on these groups.

	Climate Change Impact Assessments

	Climate Change Adaptation
	Carbon Mitigation
	REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION:
	Links to the Strategic Plan
	EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT:
	1.	Equality Duty
	The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:
	-	Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation);
	-	Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it;
	-	Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who do not share it.
	Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:
	-	The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing a relevant characteristic connected to that characteristic;
	-	Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic different from the needs of persons who do not share it;
	-	Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate in public life or in any other activity which participation by such persons is disproportionally low.

	2.	Equalities Impact Assessment:



	7 Work Programme
	HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
	Report
	1.	Summary
	1.1.	The purpose of this item is to provide the work programme of future topics to be considered by this Select Committee and discuss any other items that may need to be added.

	2.	Recommendation  That the Universal Services Select Committee discuss and agree potential items for the work programme that can be prioritised and allocated by the Chairman of the Universal Services Select Committee in consultation with the Director of Universal Services.

	CORPORATE OR LEGAL INFORMATION:
	Links to the Strategic Plan
	IMPACT ASSESSMENTS:
	1.	Equality Duty
	1.1.	The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:
		Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct prohibited under the Act;
		Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic (age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, gender and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it;
		Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.
	Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:
	a)	The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing a relevant characteristic connected to that characteristic;
	b)	Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic different from the needs of persons who do not share it;
	c)	Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate in public life or in any other activity which participation by such persons is disproportionally low.
	1.2.	Equalities Impact Assessment:
	1.3.	This is a forward plan of topics under consideration by the Select Committee, therefore this section is not applicable to this report. The Committee will request appropriate impact assessments to be undertaken should this be relevant for any topic that the Committee is reviewing.

	2.	Impact on Crime and Disorder:
	2.1.	This is a forward plan of topics under consideration by the Select Committee, therefore this section is not applicable to this report. The Committee will request appropriate impact assessments to be undertaken should this be relevant for any topic that the Committee is reviewing.

	3.	Climate Change:
	a)	How does what is being proposed impact on our carbon footprint / energy consumption?
	b)	How does what is being proposed consider the need to adapt to climate change, and be resilient to its longer term impacts?




